
 
Town of Swanzey Planning Board  Draft Minutes 
September 26, 2013 
Page 1 of 4 
 

 

 
 

Town of Swanzey, New Hampshire 
Swanzey Planning Board 

Meeting Minutes – September 26, 2013 
 

Note:  Draft Minutes are subject to review, correction and approval by the Board. Review and approval of Minutes 
generally takes place at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. 

 

The regular meeting of the Swanzey Planning Board was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chair Glenn 
Page.  Members present:  Scott Self, June Fuerderer, Jeff Goller, Gus Lerandeau, Alternate Don Skiba, 
and Alternate Jane Johnson. The roll call and agenda for the meeting was read by Chair Page and Skiba 
was seated for Smith. 
 

Absent:  Selectmen’s Representative Kenneth Colby, Jr., Joe Smith 
 
Others Present:  Town Planner Sara Carbonneau, Chad Branon, P.E., Fieldstone Land Consultants, 
Robert Rountree 
 
Minutes:  Minutes from September 12, 2013 were reviewed. Motion was made by Fuerderer to accept 
the minutes with typo correction on page 3, paragraph 1. The motion was seconded by  Goller.  All were 
in favor. Motion passed. 
 
Regional Impact: Board members considered whether any items on the agenda could be construed as 
having the potential for regional impact. Motion made by Fuerderer that no items on the agenda could 
be reasonably construed as having the potential for regional impact. Second by Skiba, no further 
discussion, and all were in favor of the motion. Motion passed. 
 
A.  APPLICATIONS 
Free-Standing Sign Permit Application 

1. Valerie Robichaud applied to construct a freestanding sign consisting of 48 square feet on 
property situated at Tax Map 73, Lot 28 situated in the Business District. The property is situated 
at 627 West Swanzey Road and is owned by G.B. Investment Holdings. 
 
Carbonneau noted that there was no one at the meeting to represent the applicant. The Chair 
asked for comments from the committee members. Goller pointed out the difficulty in reading 
the street number on the proposed sign and proposed that the committee stipulate the street 
number be displayed on left post in vertical formation. 
 

Motion by Lerandeau to approve a freestanding sign consisting of 48 square feet on 
property situated at Tax Map 73, Lot 28 situated in the Business District at 627 West 
Swanzey Road with condition that the sign display the street number, 625, stacked top 
to bottom on left post, second by Goller.  No further discussion. All were in favor. 
Motion passed. 



 
Town of Swanzey Planning Board  Draft Minutes 
September 26, 2013 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 
B. OTHER APPLICATIONS – the following application is being considered for completeness only. 
Comments were limited to the completeness of the application only. 
 
Site Plan Review Application 

1. Rountree Real Estate, LLC applied to construct a 950 square foot (subsequently amended to 
1,455 square feet) addition to the existing structure. The property is situated at 119 Monadnock 
Highway and shown at Tax Map 18, Lot 87-2 situated in the Business District. 
 
Chad E. Branon, PE, with Fieldstone Land Consultants, PLLC, represented Rountree Real Estate, 
LLC.  He handed out the revised site plan showing the amended additional square footage. The 
parcel has an existing building with a bump out at the rear and Rountree wants to extend the 
bump out to the entire building as an addition. Branon explained that the area is currently lawn 
and has a storage container.  He reported that on September 17, 2013 he went before the 
Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment (ZBA) and received a variance for setback encroachment. 
He said the building is in need of storage space and the addition will provide that. He said there 
will be no impact on drainage – will drain to existing storm water basin. He also said no 
additional parking or site lighting will be required.  One exterior door will be relocated to the 
south side of the addition.  Access to the addition will be mainly through the interior of the 
building.  
 
Carbonneau said that the addition will be sprinkled for fire safety.  Carbonneau said the Fire 
Chief has been consulted and he is okay with the addition with sprinklers, but will need to see 
and approve the building plans.  Branon said that sprinkler plans have not been submitted, but 
will be done for the building permit.  Chair Page reminded the committee that the question is 
whether or not the application is complete.   
 
As a side note, Fuerderer asked Robert Rountree if the commercials for his dealership might 
state that his business is located in Swanzey. Rountree acknowledged her request.   
 

Lerandeau moved to accept application of Rountree Real Estate LLC to construct a 1,455 
square foot addition to an existing structure on property located at 119 Monadnock 
Highway and shown at Tax Map 18, Lot 87-2 situated in the Business District. The 
motion was seconded by Skiba. Motion passed. 

 
On October 10, 2013, a public hearing will be held. 

 
C.  DISCUSSIONS/OTHER BUSINESS - 
 

1. Continued discussion regarding Monadnock Conservancy's request for funding assistance for 
West Hill/California Brook project - consideration of formal feedback to Board of Selectmen. 
 
Ann McBride, representing the Monadnock Conservancy, addressed the committee regarding 
the proposed West Hill/California Brook project.  McBride said that she provided materials for 
the committee to review via email that should answer the questions they had about details of 



 
Town of Swanzey Planning Board  Draft Minutes 
September 26, 2013 
Page 3 of 4 
 

the conservation easement. Chair Page acknowledged receiving the materials sent to 
Carbonneau by McBride and passed along to committee members. He went on to say the 
concern of some of the committee members was about hunting.   McBride said that LCHIP 
funding requires “public pedestrian access for hunting”. This easement guarantees that it would 
be open for hunting so long as LCHIP funding is involved.  She went on to say that when no 
LCHIP funding is made available, the Monadnock Conservancy does not take a position 
regarding hunting – they depend on the landowner’s wishes.  In this case, McBride reported the 
landowner was contacted and they said they were fine with hunting.  A discussion was held 
regarding the power of landowners to restrict access to hunting on easement lands.  
 
McBride said that the majority of property is not agricultural, pretty much forested. Skiba asked 
whether Swanzey funding was necessary for the project to move ahead.  McBride said that the 
City of Keene Conservation Commission voted to support the project with $26,500.  Then will go 
to Keene City Council for approval. 
 
Chair Page asked for questions.  A discussion was held about selling the land to new owners and 
their responsibility vis-à-vis the easement. When Lerandeau asked about Swanzey Board of 
Selectmen (Board), Carbonneau said the Planning Board needs to make a recommendation to 
the Board.  Carbonneau said the Board needs to hear the logic involved in the Planning Board 
thinking.  
 
A discussion was held about the parcels surrounding the easement property.  Johnson pointed 
out that none of the land would be suitable for building. Carbonneau noted that Swanzey 
Conservation Commission is supporting the project with $4,500 in funds. McBride said that 
$104,000 has been raised thus far.  Johnson mentioned that the Swanzey Open Space 
Committee (OSC) has given the project its blessing.  Chair Page said that as long as the property 
will stay open to hunting, he would endorse it.  Skiba said the Planning Board should make a 
condition that hunting be allowed if the Monadnock Conservancy doesn’t receive LCHIP funding. 
Page said the recommendation could be that no money is provided unless hunting is allowed.  
 
Self said he could not endorse it because he thinks the land would never be developed. He said 
it was his opinion the money in the Town accounts should be available for land that might be 
more susceptible to development. 
 

Goller made a motion to support the Monadnock Conservancy West Hill/California 
Brook project with funding assistance with condition that a provision is made that 
hunting be allowed, Skiba seconded the motion. The vote was five in favor and one 
opposed (Self). Motion passed. 

 
 

2. Reminder – October 1, 2013 at 6:00 p.m. joint meeting with Board of Selectmen re Sawyer’s 
Crossing Road/Route 32 Road Safety Audit. Carbonneau said that she is hoping that it won’t go 
more than 45 minutes. She confirmed that everyone had seen the audit materials. 

 
3. Other business as may be required. 



 
Town of Swanzey Planning Board  Draft Minutes 
September 26, 2013 
Page 4 of 4 
 

- Carbonneau referred to a letter in the meeting packet from resident Theresa DiLuzio 
expressing concerns about the Route 10 and Cobble Hill Road intersection. 

- Carbonneau said an application from Dollar General and will be on the Planning Board 
agenda on October 10, 2013. 

- Carbonneau informed the Planning Board that the Board of Selectmen will be inspecting the 
logging operation on Mt. Caesar on Monday, September 30, 2013. 

 
 
Motion to adjourn by Lerandeau, seconded by Goller, with all in favor. Motion passed.  
Adjournment at  6:40p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Beverly Bernard, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 


